Addendum #2
Response to Questions

RFQ# AUD093310

*Section 1-TRX Written Questions

1. What is the primary airline used by the State?

WVSAO Response:  
US Air and Delta are the primary carriers
2. What are the top five city pairs used by the State?

WVSAO Response:  
Currently they are Washington DC, Chicago, Tampa, Orlando, and Los Angeles. 

3. Section 2.1. “The Vendor will be expected to travel within the State to attend and conduct meetings, planning sessions, host configuration development workshops and provide training.” Also see Section 3.2.7.1. “Training needs will require various workshops to be conducted around the state.” Please clarify the extent to which travel will be necessary. Ideally a number of trips / on-site meetings could be specified. Travel (as opposed to virtual meetings) is a driver of cost.

WVSAO Response:  
The WVSAO’s intent is to ensure their core staff is adequately trained to exercise the “train the trainer” concept.  Therefore, we believe a minimum of two (2) face-to-face sessions may be required to train the WVSAO staff and the initial piloting agency representatives in combination with web-based training and user guides, etc.  During the roll-out phase, it is anticipated to conduct one (1) web or virtual training session per month, not to exceed twelve (12) per calendar year.

4. Section 3.2.1.1. “Approximately 10 State agencies / entities are expected to participate initially in the offering, and additional agencies will be added to the portfolio over the life of the contract.” Can you clarify the timeline for the ramp-up of the 135 agencies? Even at a high level, it would help to understand your goals. For example, one scenario would have 10 agencies on a pilot, and then all 125 agencies joining the system within 30 days. The other extreme; an alternate scenario might involve phased roll-outs over the course of a year or a couple years.

WVSAO Response:  
The WVSAO’s goal is a phased roll-out to be implemented over the course of one (1) year.  We can not establish an exact timeline for the remaining agencies at this time.  There is no guarantee that all 135 agencies will participate but it is a potential.  The overarching effort and goal of the WVSAO is to strongly encourage the use of the system for uniformity by all agencies.
5. Section 3.2.1.1. “Additional services may include support of credit card programs for the various Higher Education entities and Research Corporations credit card programs as well as local government entities who choose to participate in the Purchasing Card Program.” What kind of support is envisioned in this statement?

WVSAO Response:  
The WVSAO’s intent is to provide for an option to allow these entities to “piggyback” the awarded contract.  
6. Section 3.2.3.2. “It is desirable for the system to be able to provide for transition of existing travel profiles that may exist electronically or on paper.” How many profiles exist today? When were the profiles last updated? How many profiles are on paper? Are all profiles created in a consistent format? Are the profiles stored on a GDS? Is it a requirement that the tool synch up the profiles to the GDS?

WVSAO Response:  
The State’s current travel agency (National Travel) maintains a limited database of current travel profiles.  They have 958 travel profiles stored in a GDS, which are updated as needed. However, there is the potential for all state employees to establish a travel profile.  This is National Travel’s profile system; not the State’s profile system which will vary.
As mentioned in section 3.2.3.2.1, currently all state employees (Approx. 45,000) have an existing profile in the State’s payroll system (EPICS), which is consistently maintained and anticipated to be the foundation for building future profiles.  Our desire is to have the ability to interface with or import the existing information into the travel management software via a consistent format such as a text file, excel etc.  The intent of this section for establishing a profile should be based on the State’s existing profile of employee data.  For those governmental entities who are not part of the State’s primary payroll system (i.e. local, county), those profiles may only exist in paper format.
*Section 2-Concur Questions

1.
Section 1.2:   a) Please provide a list of State agencies/entities that are expected to participate in the initial offering.

b) Please provide an estimate of online booking transactions for each agency/entity.  

c) Please provide an estimate of expense report transactions for each agency/entity.

WVSAO Response:  
a) May be subject to change:
Dept. of Health and Human Resources

Division of Natural Resources

Division of Banking

State Auditor’s Office

Fairmont State University 

Office of the Governor

Office of Technology

Marshall University

State Treasurer’s Office
Department of Administration

b) The total numbers of online booking transactions processed through National Travel is 13,345.  However, not all agencies/entities are currently required to use National Travel as their booking tool.

c)  Estimate of expense transactions by agency:

Division of Health and Human Resources - 24,950
Division of Natural Resources - 1,340
Division of Banking - 868 
State Auditor’s Office - 1,920
Fairmont State University - 1,118
Office of the Governor – 708
Marshall University - 2,519
State Treasurer’s Office - 893

2.
Section 1.9  Please clarify our understanding of the form of the documents and CDs to be submitted:


- One original paper technical proposal, 7 convenience paper copies, 1 CD?


- One original paper cost proposal and 7 convenience paper copies, no CD?

- Or, one piece of paper each for technical and cost proposals, plus 7 CDs for the technical proposal only?

WVSAO response:  
It is required that you submit, separately sealed, one (1) original signed paper technical proposal and one (1) original signed cost proposal as well as seven (7) convenience copies of the technical proposal only on CD’s to be shared with the evaluation committee.  Only one (1) original signed cost proposal is required; copies will be made as appropriate by the Evaluation Committee Chairperson.
Note:  you may submit your proposal and all information via fax or email; however, as discussed at the pre-bid meeting, you are responsible for ensuring that all transmissions are complete PRIOR to the bid closing date/time.  The WV State Purchasing Division is not responsible for transmission errors or pages that are not received.
3.
Section 1.19: If Concur is the selected vendor, we are happy to negotiate in 
good faith mutually acceptable terms and agreements to meet the business 
needs of both parties.  Concur has a standard contract with terms and conditions 
which can be provided to the State of West Virginia for review.


WVSAO response:


All terms and conditions are to be made a part of a vendor’s response to the 
RFP.  We do not negotiate terms and conditions after the bid responses are 
received.  Any vendor’s term or condition that does not comply with the 
solicitations’ terms and conditions’ intent may be grounds for disqualification. 
4.
Section 3.2.1.1:  a) How many separate and distinct travel policies are expected 
to be incorporated into the initial implementation of this system? 

b) Are additional travel policies expected to be incorporated at later dates, and if so, approximately when?

c) Please provide copies of the travel policies for the 10 agencies for initial scope.  This information is needed to properly scope the implementation.


WVSAO response:  

a) The agencies anticipated to pilot the program represent five (5) different sets 
of travel policies.  

b) Currently, the State operates under seventeen (17) sets of policies.  Additional 
policies would be added as needed during the subsequent rollout.


c) Please see attached.

5.
Section 3.2.1.1: Please provide a list of corporate cards to be imported into the 
expense reporting system.  Please include the following for each card:

a) Type: Ghost Card, Travel & Entertainment Card, PCard, Meeting Card, Personal Card, etc.
b) Payment Strategy:  Centrally Paid, Employee Paid, Company Paid, etc.

c) Vendor:  American Express, VISA, M/C, Diners, etc.

d) Liability:  Individual Liability, State Liability, etc.


WVSAO Response:  

The current state travel card is the United Bank MasterCard, which is a personal 
liability card, issued to 7,776 employees.  We would anticipate these cards to be 
discontinued and reissued through the Purchasing Card Program on the Visa 
platform, which would be a state liability card paid at the Agency level.  There 
would also be the use of Ghost Cards for certain payment types.  We currently 
have 190 billing accounts within the Purchasing Card Program and would 
anticipate a minimum of one (1) Ghost Card per account.
6.
Section 3.2.1.1: Please describe the implementation plan for the remaining 125 
agencies. 

a) Is there a schedule for the remaining agencies?

b) What is the minimum number of transactions should we anticipate for each stage?
c) Is the State expecting firm pricing on implementation for these remaining agencies? 


WVSAO Response:  
a) The WVSAO’s goal is a phased roll-out to be implemented over the course of one (1) year.  We can not establish an exact timeline for the remaining agencies at this time.  There is no guarantee that all 135 agencies will participate but it is a potential.  The overarching effort and goal of the WVSAO is to strongly encourage the use of the system for uniformity by all agencies.


b) It is anticipated to have 4,000 to 8,000 transactions with respect to the 
agencies that are scheduled first for initial implementation; however, some 
agencies may be more or less.

c) Yes, we desire the pricing to be based upon the full implementation.
7. Section 3.2.1.7: Refers to “robust global functionality.”  Please provide examples of what the State considers global functionality.  


WVSAO Response:  


Please replace this section with the following:   


3.2.1.7   The system must be intuitive and user-friendly.  The system must be 
able to support policy control and compliance.  The system should be accessible 
worldwide via internet or phone.  The system should have robust global 
functionality (system access) as well as real time reporting and data exportation.  
Real time reporting would be considered a maximum of 30 minute update 
intervals.

8. Section 3.2.2.5: Can you describe your vision of how the system would be able to cost allocate trips at the time of booking?


WVSAO Response:  


It is our desire to be able to allocate the anticipated expenses at the time of 
booking to the various internal accounts within each agency in order to approve 
the trip based on any internal budgetary restraints rather than having to wait to 
reconcile and allocating at the end of the trip. The State desires to be able to 
make changes to expense allocation at the end of the trip as well.
9.
Section 3.2.2.5.1: Can you give examples of “third party” type billings?


- how does the State envision the system assisting with these billings?


WVSAO Response:  


The intent of this request is to be able to extract the information, or portions of 
the information, to create an invoice in order to bill another entity for 
reimbursement after a completed trip.  Example:  The State Office of Technology 
provides technical service (i.e. help desk) to all agencies as needed.  This may 
require travel of the technician to complete the service; thus, 
an employee would 
be reimbursed by the Office of Technology (or by the ‘parent 
agency of the 
employee), with the Office of Technology preparing an invoice at the end of 
the month to bill the particular agency for which its technician provided service to 
that caused out of pocket travel expenses.

In large agencies/entities, there may also be a need to bill another entity within 
their organization for travel related expenses provided on their behalf that may 
not allow such direct charges to their funding sources.
10.
Section 3.2.2.10: Use of an online booking tool requires a Travel Management 
Company (TMC) to provide fulfillment for online bookings, as well as off-line 
access to the system.  Offline reservations would be supported by the TMC’s 
travel agents via phone.  These offline reservations would synchronize with the 
online booking tool.


Please provide a comprehensive list of Travel Management Companies used by 
the State of West Virginia.
- Please include TMC name, contact name, contact phone, and contact email


WVSAO response:  

The current TMC contracted by the State is National Travel.  They can be 
reached through Ted Lawson at (304)357-0801 or at 
tedlawson@nationaltravel.com.

Section 3.2.2.10 is being changed as follows:  


Offline/disconnected booking system should have the same attributes/capability 
as the online version.  Offline/disconnected means that reservations being placed 
with a ‘live travel agent’ by phone should have a similar experience and process 
flow to those reservations made online.


Section 3.2.2.10.1 is being changed as follows:


It is preferred that the offline/disconnected booking system, through a live agent 
via phone, have the ability to accommodate service alerts to users for preset 
traveler rules and validations.


Sections 3.2.2.10.2 and 3.2.2.10.3 are being deleted in their entirety.
11.
Section 3.2.5.1.12: Concur Cliqbook Travel & Expense is presently not certified 
as compliant with Section 508 of the Federal Acquisitions Register/Americans 
with Disabilities Act. Is this a requirement that could disqualify Concur from 
responding?


WVSAO Response:  


This item is being deleted in its entirety as we do not believe this to be a 
requirement at this time.  Should compliance to any portion of Section 508 and/or 
the Americans with Disabilities Act become necessary, the vendor shall become 
certified to meet any federal or state requirement related to such certification at 
not additional cost to the State.
12.
Section 3.2.5.3.1: Concur includes ad hoc query as part of the base offering, but 
its robust reporting and analytics (Concur Analytics) is an additional charge. How 
should we propose the alternative for Analytics in the cost section?

WVSAO Response:  


If additional reports are needed that are not included in the base price, the 
vendor should state in their response what type of reporting is included as 
the 
base offering and provide the costs for those reports and analytics not included in 
both the technical and cost portions of the response.
13.
Section 3.2.6: Please note that Customer Service Support for travel reservations 
is provided by the Travel Management Company (TMC).  Neither vendor can 
provide the support requested in this section.  This question should be revised to 
ask each vendor for the support provided for both the online booking tool and 
expense management system.


WVSAO Response:  


Sections 3.2.6.1 and 3.2.6.1.1 should be deleted in their entirety.  


Change section 3.2.6.2 to read as follows:

The vendor is expected to provide customer service support for their proposed 
system to the State’s designated Administrator(s), agency travel managers, 
arrangers and to the travelers as necessary.

No changes to section 3.2.6.3.

14.
Section 3.2.7.1: Regarding onsite training workshops to be conducted around 
the state, please provide the following information to help us scope the training 
effort:

a) How many training workshops of each type (web-based, classroom etc.) are anticipated?

b) What is the approximate number of users to be trained?


WVSAO Response:  


a) The WVSAO’s intent is to ensure their core staff is adequately trained to 
exercise the “train the trainer” concept.  Therefore, we believe a minimum of two 
(2) face-to-face sessions may be required to train the WVSAO staff and the initial 
piloting agency representatives in combination with web-based training and user 
guides, etc.  During the roll-out phase, it is anticipated to conduct one (1) web or 
virtual 
training session per month, not to exceed twelve (12) per calendar year. 

b) The exact number of participants is unknown at this time.  
15.
Section 4.5: Concur only offers its Travel & Expense service via a hosted model. 
Will there be a penalty or reduction in score for not offering an alternative for the 
State to host the software?


WVSAO Response:  


No, however, a response is required on the cost sheet stating this is not 
available if it is not offered by your company.
Concur Questions on the Cost Proposal/Bid Schedule Sheet

16. Item 2: Concur does not charge to load individual profiles. They are uploaded as 
a process through the expense system, so this item would be included in our 
Implementation fee.


WVSAO Response:  


If there is no separate cost to the State, then the vendor should clarify this in the 
response by inserting “zero” in the item requesting the price.
17. Item 5: Can you define the characteristics of the following services:


- Advisory


- Site Management


- Designated Account Manager


- Advanced Management Reporting (if different from Section 3.2.5.3)


WVSAO Response:  


The intent of the Advisory, Site Management and Designated Account Manager 
is to be cost associated with the ongoing administrative support of the software if 
these costs are not included in the per transaction fee.  

The Advanced Management Reporting is the same as in Section 3.2.5.3.

18. Item 6: Does “Travel Booking/Request Submission” include expense report 
submissions?

Item 6e: Can these prices be provided by your TMC(s)?


WVSAO Response:  


Yes, the “Travel Booking/Request Submission” includes expense report 
submissions.


Item 6e: will be changed to read:


Customer Service Support 



Online $_______ Per Transaction/Occurrence




Offline $_______ Per Transaction/Occurrence 
19. Can the state add a section to the pricing sheet for ancillary services that are not 
being considered that may be of value to the State?  For example, Best Practices 
Consulting, Outsourced Auditing Service, etc.

WVSAO Response:  


For consideration of such types of ancillary services, we will add an item to the 
cost proposal/bid schedule sheet.
20. Does the state strictly follow the Federal Government GSA per diems?  Please 
note any deviations.


WVSAO Response:

No, please see individual travel regulations provided.  

21. Interagency billing was mentioned in the Pre-bid meeting.  Please describe how 
the system is expected to support this process.


WVSAO Response:  


Please see response to Section 3.2.2.5.1 (question/item #9) concerning third 
party billing.
22. Please provide a list of the State’s Preferred Vendors for Car and Hotel if 
applicable.  Only hotel/car brand is required; individual listings by address are not 
being requested.


WVSAO Response: 

The current state contract for Car Rental is with Enterprise.  For more info:

http://www.state.wv.us/admin/purchase/SWC/CRENTAL.htm

The current preferred In-state Hotel price agreements are with a variety of 
entities.  For more info: http://www.state.wv.us/admin/purchase/SWC/MOTL.htm

Note:  not all entities are required to use these preferred agreements; some 
entities who are not required to use these agreements and may have their own 
with other providers. 

Other Changes and/or clarifications being made by the State of WV:

Add:  Section 3.2.1.8 to read as follows:

As the state may have multiple travel agencies (booking agents) across the enterprise, it is strongly desired that the online booking tool be able to support multiple travel agencies, GDS, offline/disconnected – live agent assisted transactions.  

Add:  Section 3.2.2.12 to read as follows:

The online booking tool should be able to support multiple travel booking agents as stated in section 3.2.1.8.  It is preferred that the booking tool be able to consolidate the multiple agents, GDS systems, etc. on one platform.
Section 3.2.2.4.1:  Change the last sentence to read:  
Preference is to have booking tools (online/disconnected – via live agent) that include enforcement of an agency’s travel guidelines and supplier preferences at the time of booking.
Section 3.2.2.4.2:  Change the last sentence to read:  
The system should be able to support such approvals in the booking system via an automated process through the agency’s hierarchy and preset rules; or, at a minimum, such automation may include notifying the agency’s designated travel manager who can intercede in an effort to override a designated supplier or any other preset rule.  There may be more than one designated travel managers at the agency level who will be responsible for this type approval.

Add:  Section 3.2.4.1.3 to read as follows:

It is desired that the system be able support the State’s need to compare pre-negotiated rates with vendors in comparing actual expenses incurred by the traveler to ensure compliance.
Section 3.2.4.3:  Change the section to read:  
The system should provide for management in its system to track unused credits/tickets for potential future use.  It’s desired that this feature also be available on the booking side as well.  This info should be viewable by the traveler and the travel manager.
Section 3.2.5.1.3:  Change the section to read:
It is highly desirable for the system to be able to manage preferred supplier designations in it’s systems to ensure compliance.  The ability to audit/compare preapproved contract/negotiated rates at the time of booking is desired.  

Section 3.2.5.3.5:  Change - add a sentence to read:

As stated in sections 3.2.1.8 and 3.2.4.1.3, reporting/analytics capability to support compliance and general business intelligence is strongly desired.  

Part 4, Section 4.3 Evaluation Criteria:
Add after the fifth paragraph:  The response should clearly indicate how your proposed system and solutions will meet and/or exceed the State’s needs and expectations in each category (Sub-Sections 2 – 5), by category as applicable.  The State will not advise any vendor on how to respond in proposing their solution.  Each proposal will be reviewed to determine who has a system that meets the mandatory deliverables as well as a one that has, or can offer, desirable attributes as stated throughout the scope of work/objective to further enhance the systems capabilities.  

Section 1 – Experience 

Staff:  At a minimum, resumes should be provided with the name, title and relevant experience in support of the staff being proposed for this project in determining experience and qualifications.  Do not include personal information such as social security numbers or other such information.

Section 1 – References 

The references of the three largest clients should be based on the processing volume of 50,000 – 100,000 transactions.

CHANGE THE BID OPENING DATE TO DEC. 11, TIME REMAINS AT 1:30PM
